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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six-month ended 30 June 2019.

The Group’s overall revenue improved slightly by HK$3.0 million, or 2.3%
to HK$133.8 million (2018: HK$130.8 million). The growth was mainly
attributed to the continuous increase in revenue generated by the
Group’s Application Services business, offset by the decrease in revenue
generated by the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business.

In line with the increase in revenue, the gross profit of the Group
increased by HK$1.7 million, or 2.4% to HK$75.0 million (2018: HK$73.3
million). Moreover, due to increase in fair value gain from financial assets,
the total non-operating incomes increased by HK$1.4 million, or 19.6% to
HK$8.8 million (2018: HK$7.4 million).

The Group's overall expenses increased by 10.2% to HK$47.7 million
(2018: HK$43.3 million) as compared with the same period last year. Such
increase was mainly in staff costs attributed to the additional resources
in strengthening the Group’s overall management and business
development as well as the sales and support team.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders reduced slightly by 4.7% to HK$28.8 million
(2018: HK$30.2 million). The basic earnings per share also dropped to
11.66 HK cents (2018: 12.47 HK cents).

In view of a sustained healthy financial position, the Board declared the
distribution of an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (2018: 9 HK cents) per
ordinary share for the six-month ended 30 June 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

Despite slowdown of the economy, the Group’s Application Software’
business maintained its momentum and achieved double-digit growth in
both revenue and profit contributions.

The Group’s Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”)
business continued to expand its customer base and capture prestigious
customers from various industries in the region, including a statutory
body responsible for local cultural development, a major airline and an
insurance company under one of the largest banks in China. In addition,
the Work Force Management (“WFM”) modules launched last year had
been enhanced with additional features and receiving positive market
acceptance.

The Group successfully concluded new customers in the area of HRMS
cloud services amid increasing market demand. While the HRMS cloud
services will provide more stable recurring income for the business in the
long term, it may shift part of the demand for HRMS on-premise software
licences to cloud services, which may impact the related licence income
in the short run.

Moreover, the management is glad to announce that the Group’s HRMS
in PRC was honoured with the “HCM Local Deployment Top 10” award?at
the 2019 China HR Tech Solution Provider Value Awards.

With a strong order backlog carried forward, the Group’s Enterprise
Retail Management Software (“ERMS”) business recorded solid growth in
both revenue and profit contributions during the reporting period. The
management is delighted to reveal that a new customer from a global
fashion brand adopted our ERMS suite to facilitate its Asia Pacific business
expansion with full deployment planned in second half of this year.

With increasing cloud service income from new customers, both the
revenue and profit contributions of the Group’s Enterprise Procurement
Management Software (“EPMS”) business were materially improved
during the reporting period. The management had been actively
exploring new customers for the Group’s EPMS cloud services and is glad
to report that new customers from different sectors, including a statutory
body responsible for local cultural development, a well-known local
charity organisation and a local university, will adopt our EPMS cloud
services soon.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EEHRE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

The Group’s Enterprise Information Management Software (“EIMS”)
business also recorded double-digit growth in both revenue and profit
contributions during the reporting period. New contracts were awarded
from various customers including a regulatory institution of Macau
SAR Government and a statutory body under the HKSAR Government
(the “Government”) during the reporting period. In addition, the Group
launched its EIMS on cloud services and is actively developing the related
business.

The Group has been putting continuous R&D efforts in building and
enhancing its next generation Human Capital Management (“HCM")
platform. Such platform allows us to provide a single log-in portal
that support componentised functional modules to be added on and
integrated according to specific customer requirement. It also allows us
to integrate technologies from other providers seamlessly as proven by
our successful integration with client’s own native mobile application,
WeChat and CV parsing provider. The R&D team is also working on
security enhancement and providing advance facial recognition and
other Al functionalities onto our HCM platform. Apart from development
on HCM platform, the Group is also developing comprehensive
application interfaces that will enable its ERMS products to have seamless
connection with other world class enterprise resource planning (ERP)
systems.

Solutions and Integration Services

Owing to the delay in contracts award from a major customer and delay
from project completion of the Development Services® under the Group’s
Solutions Services business, the revenue and profit contribution of the
Group'’s Solutions and Integration Services® business dropped by 9.7%
and 16.0% respectively.

The Managed Services® under the Group’s Solutions Services business
continued to serve and generated stable income from the second 10-year
services contract (“Contract”) of the Customer Care and Billing System
(“CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department under the Government.
According to the latest work plan, the enhancements of the CCBS under
the Contract will likely to be completed in the coming two years. During
the reporting period, development costs of HK$6.3 million in total
incurred were capitalised as deferred development costs.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)

During the reporting period the Development Services business had been
experiencing delay in contract awarding processes under a framework
agreement with a major customer. The management notices that the
situation is improving recently and new contracts were awarded orderly.
The business had also experienced some delays in the project completion
during the reporting period. These projects had been resumed on tracks
in recent months and expected to have better progress in the second half
of the year. Despite the hiccups, the business continued to secure new
orders from both the Government and commercial enterprises, including
Marine Department and Census and Statistics Department under the
Government. Furthermore, the business had successfully renewed a
multi-year outline agreement by one of the largest power businesses
in Asia Pacific for the provision of IT professional services in mid 2019
to improve the operational efficiency and stability of its IT systems and
applications.

The performance of the Group’s Integration Services® business in PRC was
slightly improved during the reporting period.

Due to weak performance of the global economy and various
external headwinds, the demand for the Group’s BPO* service and the
performance of the business were worse than the same period last year.
The management will keep searching for new prospects and streamlining
the resources in order to enhance the operation efficiency.

e-Service and related business

The revenue and profit contributions of the Group’s GETS® business
recorded growth in both revenue and profit contribution during the
reporting period.

The collaboration with Hongkong Post to provide traders with paper-
to-electronic trade declaration services from 1 January 2019 had
effectively expanded our service coverage and enhanced relevant
income. Furthermore, the performance of the business had further been
improved as the costs incurred for the provision of new e-services had
been reduced during the reporting period.

However, the uncertainties stemming from US-Mainland trade tensions
and other external issues continued to dampen production and trading
activities in Asia. Hong Kong's export performance in the period ahead
will, to a large extend, depend on whether the US and the Mainland can
reach a trade agreement. In view of the uncertainties, the management
will keep monitoring the external environment closely and consider all
necessary and appropriate moves from time to time.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EEHRE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investments

Due to increase in fair value gains from financial assets, the Group'’s
Investments segment recorded an increase in the profit contribution
of HKS1.5 million, or 35.3% to HKS$5.6 million (2018: HK$4.1 million).
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 7 August 2019, the
Group had entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of one of the investment
properties of the Group in PRC at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB8.4 million.

PROSPECT

US-China trade war brings Hong Kong’s economic expansion to near a
standstill, which will remain uncertain in the near future. The market is
anticipating a strong headwind due to the trade tensions. The recent
ongoing unrest is also adding uncertainty to the local economy. The
management considers that the local market will continue to be affected
by cautious local economic sentiment amid a challenging external
environment which will impact our customers’ decision making processes
and defer the conclusion of new sales orders in the near future.

However, the Group remains vigilant for new opportunities to improve
our business. We remain steadfast in our commitment in research and
development and focused on new prospects that can gear the Group to
cater for the needs of our customers.
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Footnotes:

1

The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
application software and e-business services for enterprises including (i)
the provision of enterprise application software with implementation and
ongoing support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise
Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the “Application Software”); and
(i) the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS"), cloud services and
other related value added services (collectively the “e-Service and related
business”).

Also known as the “Oscar Awards” in China’s HR industry, the “HCM Local
Deployment Top 10” award at the 2019 China HR Tech Solution Provider
Value Awards is organised by the HR Excellence Center, aiming to gather
outstanding HR solution suppliers to promote the best services and lead
the development of the industry. It is widely trusted by the industry and
has become the best indicator for companies looking for quality HR system
suppliers.

The Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; (ii) Managed Services for the provision
of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; (iii) business
process outsourcing (“BPO”) services; and (iv) Integration Services for the
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and on-going support services.

The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the
operations and support of specific business functions or processes of
customers.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from
the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group’s GETS License was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of
additional six years until the end of 2024.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EEHRE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

The Group’s revenue increased slightly by HK$3.0 million, or 2.3% to
HK$133.8 million (2018: HK$130.8 million) during the reporting period.
The growth in revenue was mainly attributed to the continuous increase
in revenue generated by the Group’s Application Services business
of approximately HK$8.6 million, offset by the decrease in revenue
generated by the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business of
approximately HKS$5.5 million.

The Group’s gross profit also increased by HK$1.7 million, or 2.4% to
HK$75.0 million (2018: HK$73.3 million) while the gross profit margin
maintained at around 56.0%.

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other income and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
increased by 19.6% to HK$8.8 million (2018: HK$7.4 million). The change
was primarily due to the increase in fair value gains on financial assets.

Expenses

Owing to the expansion of the Group’s sales resources for the
improvement of market coverage, the Group’s selling and distribution
expenses increased by HK$1.2 million, or 7.7% to HK$17.4 million (2018:
HK$16.2 million).

For strengthening of the management and administrative resources, the
Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by HK$2.5 million,
or 9.4% to HK$29.6 million (2018: HK$27.1 million).

The Group recognised HK$0.6 million (2018: Nil) finance costs because of
the adoption of HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense

Primarily due to the increase in provision for deferred tax, income tax
expense slightly increased by HK$0.2 million, or 4.3% to HK$4.4 million
(2018: HK$4.2 million).

The Group's overall effective tax rate for the tax charge in 2019 was
around 13.1%, whereas in 2018 was 12.2%. The effective tax rate was
lower than the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types
of onshore incomes, including dividend and bank interest incomes were
not subject to the Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the effective tax rate
had further been driven down by the recognition of deferred tax credit
arising from amortisation of other intangible assets.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders dropped by 4.7% to
HK$28.8 million (2018: HK$30.2 million) while the net profit margin
(profit for the period attributable to shareholders divided by the revenue)
reduced to 21.5% (2018: 23.1%). The change was mainly due to the fact
that the increase in overall expenses was higher than that of the growth
in gross profit.

Non-current assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 30 June 2019 increased by 4.1% to
HK$288.4 million (31 December 2018: HK$276.9 million). The change was
primarily attributed to the net effect of (i) the recognition of right-of-use
assets because of the adoption of HKFRS 16 in 2019, (ii) the capitalisation
of deferred development costs arising from a project of the Group’s
Solutions Services business and (iii) the reclassification of an investment
property of the Group to assets held for sale under current assets.

Current assets

The Group’s current assets as at 30 June 2019 increased slightly by 0.9% to
HK$357.6 million (31 December 2018: HK$354.4 million). The change was
mainly caused by (i) the increase in assets classified as held for sale as the
Group had committed to dispose of one of the investment properties; (ii)
the increase in trade receivables and contract assets as there were more
progress developments billed and pending to be billed by end of June
2019; (iii) the decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables as
there was less prepayment paid to the suppliers; and (iv) the decrease in
cash and bank balances following the despatch of 2018 final dividend in
June 2019.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of impairment provision)
were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFERE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current and non-current liabilities

The recognition of lease liabilities following to the adoption of HKFRS 16
had primarily contributed to the increase in the Group’s current liabilities
and non-current liabilities as at 30 June 2019 to HK$147.2 million (31
December 2018: HK$140.6 million) and HK$20.7 million (31 December
2018: HK$12.7 million), respectively.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets of Applications Services business decreased owing to
the decrease in other intangible assets and trade receivables while the
segment liabilities of the business decreased in line with the decrease in
other payables and accruals and contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
owing to the increase in deferred development costs and trade
receivables while the segment liabilities of the business increase in line
with the increase in contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Investments business increased due to the
appreciation in value of investment properties and financial assets held.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2019 maintained at around HK$478.1 million (31
December 2018: HK$478.1 million) with almost no change.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$64.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$64.2 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$14.1 million (31 December 2018:
HK$12.7 million) and bank balances of HK$1.9 million (31 December
2018: HK$2.1 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including
guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries
of the Company in aggregate of HK$112.0 million (31 December 2018:
HK$112.0 million) of which HK$21.5 million (31 December 2018: HK$23.2
million) have been utilised as at 30 June 2019.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$1.9 million) was HK$233.6 million (31
December 2018: HK$255.5 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2018: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liability was 2.4 (31 December 2018: 2.5) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 26.0% (31
December 2018: 24.3%).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2019 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2018 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed 372 full time employees
and 4 contract-based employees (31 December 2018: 357 full time
employees and 5 contract-based employees).

As at 30 June 2019, the Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations
as well as retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the period and up to the date of this interim report.
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2019.

FHBRXREERE

AEEZEERR - THEERMBEITHRA
BREXNHM - BREARFEIN AEEAR
BrEBREEA N EMER  URERE
ZRIBEER

HBE_E—NENA=+THIENEAAH
W HNBREAEE - — \FEFHKFT
BEE—H R_E—NEASA=+H =&«
EBREANEZEZBEEMAZENEER (=
E-N\F+ZA=+—H8:35782BEE
K526 HEE) -

RZFB-NFRA=THB ARRDRIUBE
PerEst 8 M B (0 22 Rhat 81 - AE UL AUE) KR B E
REAKEEBRNELERMZEBERAAR
SERREZERMEENEHES -
EARE

BAREAEEELEN  BE_T—NFXRA
=R AEEYERBEEMEAKRE -
BREBREEHBATNZEAR
7

AEERPAREEAT HERE A AL #E
TERAEREBER L EMBRRZEARS -

EAREREREEZRRETE

BE_Z-AFRA=TH TEEHEHR
BERREREAREEREEMSES -
FREE

BRARESIEEEN  BE_F—NFXA
=tHB AEEMEERLAGE-

] 4 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2019



INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (30
June 2018: an interim dividend of 9 HK cents) per ordinary share for the
six months ended 30 June 2019.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
2 September 2019 to Tuesday, 3 September 2019, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 August 2019. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Monday, 16 September 2019 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Tuesday, 3 September 2019.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 August 2019
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRRmEIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2019,
together with the comparative amounts. These condensed consolidated

interim results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit committee.

MBRGEEAERAR ((ARADESFS
([E=F2 ) BUHE2NARBREKE LR (5
BIAEBDBE=_T—NLFA=THL
NEAZAREREARATHEEER
HEHT HEEHREATHMERECHK
HARBEZZESEM -

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT fBi4GRAEHER
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BEANBA=1tHIEAEA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET—N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RagEZ)
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
i3 FET FHET
REVENUE A 5 133,848 130,818
Cost of sales and services HE KR KA (58,866) (57,563)
Gross profit EF 74,982 73,255
Other income and gains, net E A R W 5 5 5 4,664 4,637
Foreign exchange differences, net bE 5 Z R (246) 32
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AFERE (B18) F58 -
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVELERAR
profit or loss ZHBEE 1,410 (285)
Investment properties TEMEE 3,000 3,000
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRAX (17,443) (16,197)
General and administrative expenses, net  — & & 77 58 2 JF 58 (29,605) (27,063)
Finance costs B E R (614) -
Other expenses HEMmAEx (3,011) (3,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B A 2 6 33,137 34,368
Income tax expense FrisfiF X 7 (4,357) (4,178)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE &2 Bl HE A {5 A HI RS
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT i A 28,780 30,190
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &2 R ER IR RAEL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF HK cents HK cents
THE PARENT 9 Bl JENL
Basic AR 11.66 1247
Diluted ] 11.60 1245
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BRGsR e 2 EWER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANAZ=+tHLAEAR

2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —E-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (CRisEZ)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 B /R A 28,780 30,190
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss that may be REEHR - B2 EEET
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EoEEERER
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEBREE ZEREZH
foreign operations = (1,463)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE & A T#EA ABGAHEE2E
PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF LONE
THE PARENT 28,780 28,727

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SRR 4R & BT IS AR R =

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RA=tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (TE|iz)
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
Hiat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 10 3,169 3,120
Investment properties "EYE 11 70,161 75,661
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13,516 =
Goodwill BES 12 134,485 134,485
Other intangible assets Hitn | &E 13 57,374 54,062
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEKLEZARZ
profit or loss MG ERE 16 4,644 4,633
Deposits by 2,260 2,260
Deferred tax assets FEIEFIAE B 19 2,803 2,713
Total non-current assets IEREEELE 288,412 276,934
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 2,984 723
Trade receivables el E % AR 14 57,720 43,572
Prepayments, deposits and ?E\ﬁ ke RE MK
other receivables IE 9,404 14,999
Contract assets & ,\’7 BE 15 25,197 20,627
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEZERZARZ
profit or loss MBEE 16 11,563 10,164
Tax recoverable AR AT I 6,681 6,681
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER 1,945 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBSEE 233,573 255,545
349,067 354,411
Assets classified as held for sale DEAERFEHEHENEE 11 8,500 -
Total current assets MEEELE 357,567 354,411
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and BN E SRR ﬁ@ﬁ’%ﬁ =
accruals 18 R FEFT 3R IR 17 68,497 74,096
Contract liabilities aHAERE 18 60,174 56,954
Lease liabilities %ﬁ%ﬁ & 7,262 -
Tax payable FESFRIE 11,244 9,501
Total current liabilities MEBELE 147,177 140,551
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFRE 210,390 213,860
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 498,802 490,794

18

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2019



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

ERRAR S IR R (F)

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
ANAB=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEERZ) (EEiz)
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
Kt FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 6,486 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIAAE 19 14,221 12,730
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 20,707 12,730
Net assets BEFE 478,095 478,064
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEARGRER
the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account & 17 4 1B AR 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share RIE A BR HI %5 SEE) 5T 2
award scheme #HB 2K (4,902) (5,809)
Other reserves EbfE 404,944 376,221
Proposed final dividend BOR KR AR B - 29,599
Total equity Mg 478,095 478,064
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MG A R 2 B

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEGARL
Other reserves
Afpfie
Shares held Available-
under the Share- for-sale Proposed
Share  restricted based Asset  investment Exchange final and
Issued ~ premium share award payment  Goodwill  revaluation  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained special Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividends equity
it
BRH
R &8 A R
BEfT Bh  iEEE  REAER R BEER  HERA B EXR® 72 KR
e HER ZIR{3 i e e EfEE it B & ke EaER
HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKs000 HKs000 HKS 000 HKS 000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2018 —3-)\§-f-A 24419 38,493 (1919) 2,908 (7,227) 1972 621 746 31 360,588 290% 452968
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RRAAAHBREEN
g9572 = > 5 = = s (621) - - 621 - -
At January 2018 (restated) R=Z-N\F-A-A
(B%E5) 1419 38493 (1919) 2908 (7221) 1912 - 746 327 361,209 209 452968
Profit for the period REEER - - - - - - - - - 30,190 = 30,190
Other comprehensive loss forthe period: A S E (2 EHE
Exchange differences ontranslation o~ A EIEH EREEL 2
foreign operations EizR - - - - - - - - (1463) - o (1,463)
Total comprehensive income TEH2ENAEE
forthe period - - - - - - - - (1463) 30,190 - 28707
Purchase of shares held under the REERHRN B 202
restricted share award scheme TREA - - (2811) - - - - - - - - (2811)
Vesting of shares held under the ERARA R0z EET
restricted share award scheme hh&E - = 52 (250) = = = = = = = =
Share award arrangements Tt B - - - 491 - - - - - = = 491
Final and special 2017 dividends declared & k=% —+F K&K
KRS - - - - - - - - - 0 906 (2900
At30June 2018 RZE-\ERA=1R 24419 38493 (4478) 3147 (1221) 19712 - 746 1808 391489 - 450,369
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

CPAN Iy =1
AR e R B EIR(E)
Attributable to owners of the parent
Other reserves
EftRfE
Shares held
under the Share-
Share  restricted based

premium shareaward  payment Reserve Retained Total
account scheme reserve funds profits equity

RE

AR

BUEL ]

Rt tEkE  BRHAR i e
BEE 2k L B¢ v BELE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FET TR FEr FE
At January 2019 RZE-N§-A-8 53,104 (5,809) 4,246 746 377,506 478,064
Profit for the period FEREHN - - - - 28,780 28,780
Total comprehensive incomefor the period A2 MU 43 - - - - 28,780 26,780
Vesting of shares held under therrestricted AR 51R 3 RRYTEAT

share award scheme hih&E - 907 (907) - - -
Share award arrangements Ry REZH - - 906 - - 906
Final 2018 dividend declared ER-F-\FRERE - - - - (56) (29,655)
At30June 2019 RZE-NERA=TH 53,104 (4.902) 4,245 746 406,230 478,095

E - NERBEE | MRS EEARAT
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHILAEAR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (CREsEZ)
Notes HK$000 HKS000
it FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B %3¢ B g A1) 33,137 34,368
Adjustments for: A EL
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (3,187) (3,228)
Dividend income from listed BEATEKEERAKRZ
investments at fair value through EIRERBEWA
profit or loss 5 (320) (326)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: ANEEEBER (W)
HEE
Financial assets at fair value through BEATELERAKRZ
profit or loss MG EE (1,410) 285
Investment properties REYHE (3,000) (3,000)
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BELRSEBEZITE
equipment 6 718 1,320
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAREECITE 6 3,530 =
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE 5 IR FURE 8 6 - 238
Reversal of impairment of trade BEEWE S ERIFRE
receivables, net R 6 (48) -
Reversal of impairment of contract BE&HEERE
assets 6 (68) -
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih s 6 3,011 3,011
Equity-settled share-based payment IR AR
expense 6 9206 491
33,269 33,159
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(8m) (2,261) 51
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 2 BRFZIE N (14,100) (18,318)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTRIE - e RE MR
deposits and other receivables FIBRA (3 0) 5,595 (5,046)
Increase in contract assets/amounts due A EE TEWAEHNEF K
from contract customers TEE AN (4,502) (2,846)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables JEfT 8 58z 7% « H fth FE {5k
and accruals I8 K JERT IR R (5,599) (2,410)
Increase in contract liabilities/amounts ARG/ ENEHNERPR
due to contract customers TEIE N 3,220 5,278
Increase in contract liabilities/deferred AHAE /BT AN
revenue - 9,613
Cash generated from operations LEEFFBRE 15,622 19,481
Overseas taxes paid BRUBINEIR (1,213) (943)
Net cash flows from operating activities A& EENFT1E 2
REMEFE 14,409 18,538
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

RS RS RER(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=THLAEA

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZ) (RgEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Net cash flows from operating activities KERHFABcREREFE 14,409 18,538
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ~ R&EZFE KB, (FTA) 2
ACTIVITIES RERE
Bank interest received B UERTT A A 3,187 3,228
Dividends received from listed investmentsat & A FELEZ AR Z ETIKE
fair value through profit or loss g WA 320 326
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BELRZREEER
equipment (765) (897)
Additions to other intangible assets RNEHEMBEE (6,323) (4,275)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - WEREKHBEEB G
plant and equipment E L - 5
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits & IR 1T F 7B 4, (3 40) 155 (340)
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with W REBRBBE=[A 2 &
original maturity of more than three months X ER1TFFUR
when acquired 688 46,847
Net cash flows from/(used in) in investing BEEESNE(FTA)ZHER
activities =558 (2,738) 44,894
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METBHAZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares under the restricted share 88 B B[R #Ii ) 2Bt 21T
award scheme Evgril - (2,811)
Principal portion of lease payments MEFIERN AR H (3,298) =
Dividend paid ERARE (29,655) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEHMACRESREFE (32,953) (2,811)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRERARSEEZEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA) 3 (21,282) 60,621
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of B RERERREGEE
period 254,857 198,700
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MERBE s LT (2) (1,419)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOF i BEREFFLEE
PERIOD 233,573 257,902
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReREARESEELZRDIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRAGR A M IEARRERFTRZ
condensed consolidated statement of RehkEFRBETEE
financial position 233,573 258,902
Non-pledged bank deposits with original WEERREAABB=EA 2
maturity of more than three months when EIERRITER
acquired - (1,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRAGASIRERERIRY
condensed consolidated statement of cash BEeRERESEE
flows 233,573 257,902

E - NERBEE | MRS EEARAT
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS"), cloud services and other related value added
services;

. provision of information technology (“IT”) solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (“BPO”") services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim
condensed consolidated financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except
for the adoption of the new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") effective as of 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 16
Leases, Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures and HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments, the new and revised standards are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s interim condensed consolidated
financial information. The nature and impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not
have any financial impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

26

(a)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
1 January 2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition
of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis
of their standard-alone prices. A practical expedient is available
to a lessee, which the Group has adopted, not to separate
non-lease components and to account for the lease and the
associated non-lease components (e.g., property management
services for leases of properties) as a single lease component.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for property. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low value assets (elected on
a lease by lease basis) and short-term leases (elected by class
of underlying asset). The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for (i) leases of low-
value assets (e.g., laptop computers and telephones); and (ii)
leases, that at the commencement date, have a lease term
of 12 months or less. Instead, the Group recognises the lease
payments associated with those leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1 January
2019. All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair value,
the Group has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to be measured at
fair value applying HKAS 40.

—ENERERE | R R EERAT

(a)

3. BRfEERBKE 225 (&)

RABBUMBHREENF 165
()

EBRBEA - BEREBEH
ENHE

BB B ERERE 1654
PEMNE

AEERBLZEMENHESL -
tERABAN  NEBEAREY
HERTKEEMBENBAI
7 B K B B 88 7 = A &2 B 0 Y
i SHESHESBREHELL
EHE -REEZBEMBHRE LR
F16%  AKBREMAE— LA
REFEMAHENERAREE

ERIHEREEE) LEHHEE (17
HEEERREE) WMBEEENE
BRI AEEEEETHO)
BKEEEEMEE (PIFREKR
FH) RGRFAEAMZERAR
T_EAKA THHEEERER
BREENMEERAS HR XK
BERBAAANERESEZER
ERENEENRERAMA

s 7 SEF B 4B5
AR

R-ZZF-NE—-A—HNHEER
ERERREE M ROIRERER -
YERAR-_ZT—-hAF—A—HBH
BEBRM KR -

HENEREEELZEAERESD
BB UHEERE _T—-NF—
A — B A& B AR K P i RR
HEMBENETAEBEMNREFHEHE
NAREBEETRHBE -MAREFE
EBNERZBERE B S5 ER
F 365 E T EMRENE - A%
EBEREMBARARTEBZ7
EREEE -

HRERMGSGAREMERIRRF
Bt EMEE T i REF (FFELA
MIVES WA R, HEARIEE)
AEER-_ZE-NF-A—B#&
BRI RIREYE LNMEE
ERERB G ERIFARIZAF
BFt & -

27



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)
As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)
Impacts on transition (continued)

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the

contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at
1 January 2019 are as follows:
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(REEEZ)
HKS'000
FET
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets FREEESLN 15,715
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HEBBEEM 15,715

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 is as
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follows:
(Unaudited)
(CRasEZ)
HKSs'000
TFET
Operating lease commitments R-ZE-NF+ZA=+—H0®
as at 31 December 2018 REHERE 17,337
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate R-ZE—NF— A B INEFHIE
as at 1 January 2019 EERAE 3.9%
Discounted operating lease commitmentsand R-ZE—NF—A—HPERRKLEH
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 ERERHEAE 15,715
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

Summary of new accounting policies

The accounting policy for leases as disclosed in the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
is replaced with the following new accounting policies upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019:

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “inventories”. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the
lease term. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

30

(a)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

Summary of new accounting policies (continued)
Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 B Z =%

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

—E—

(b)

(c)

NER RS | B

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for
such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group assessed its business model for its long-
term interests in associates and joint ventures upon adoption
of the amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded that the
long-term interests in associates and joint ventures continue
to be measured at amortised cost in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s interim condensed consolidated financial information.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption
of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has
any uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing
on its intergroup sales. Based on the Group’s tax compliance
and transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is
probable that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by
the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not
have any significant impact on the Group’s interim condensed
consolidated financial information.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the GETS, cloud services and other
related value added services;

(b) the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the IT solutions implementation and application
software development; provision of IT and related operation/
infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services; and provision
of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design,
implementation and ongoing support services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
foreign exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior period.
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HEREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (a) R&EDI
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
R % BATRRERRE k& ag
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE ZE-\& ZB-AE ZE-)\§ ZE-nE ZT-\F ZE-pf )%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (ROER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FEr AT FEr FET FET FET &1 FET
Segment revenue: AHUA
Salestoexternal customers  HEFAREE
(note5) (B3E5) 81,335 72750 51,150 56,651 1,363 1417 133848 130818
Otherincomeand gains net  ELMIMA R FE 1,156 1082 = = 320 307 1476' 1409'
Total & 82,491 73832 51,150 56,651 1,683 1,744 135,324 132,207
Segment results DS 28,207 25216 13,677 16279 5611 4147 47,495 45,642
Reconcillation: HE -
Unallocated interestincome & A& F|EHA 3,188" 328"
Unallocated foreign exchange 77 EElE 4 = /54
differences, net (246) L)
Corporate and other PEREMAIRAE
unallocated depreciation (2,623) (885)
Corporate and other tEREMAIRRY
unallocated expenses (14,677) (13,649)
Profit before tax REAER 33,137 34368



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

34

4. REIBEHR (B)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #R&DI (&)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
KRR BARRRERRE k% hg
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
—5-)\& 505 ZE-0\% “E-)\F
“E-0E TR ZE-A% TR ZE-A% TR ZE-Af TZH
AB=tR  =t-B #~A=tE =t-B AB=tAR =t-H #A=tE =t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(R&&R)  (G8n) (REBR)  (GEn)  (REER) (@R (REER)  (4ER)
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FEn AT FEn A FEn FET & T
Segment assets THEE 208,708 214518 84,042 55,780 95,724 91,331 388,474 361,629
Reconcilltion: H%
Corporate and other TEREMRAREE
unallocated assets 257,505 269,716
Total assets EEnE 645,979 631,345
Segment liabilities 1H8E 88,428 93,533 39,754 30438 736 930 128,918 124901
Reconcillation: H%:
Corporate and other tEREMRAREE
unallocated liabilities 38,966 28,380
Totalliabilities BRAE 167,884 153,281

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$133,848,000
(2018: HK5130,818,000) in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains,

net, of HKS4,664,000 (2018: HKS4,637,000) in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* ERBEBRAR & 182 K 2 A7 B A
133,848,000/8 T (= F — /14 :
130,818,000 ) °

Y BREEHERBRRANIFE

H e A R Y 25 )F 58 /5 4,664,000
BT (ZF—/UIF © 4,637,000
L) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR MIEE (&)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

4. REIWBER (R)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) K& (&)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
R BATEREHER RE 4a
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-pE ZE2-/E ZB-AF Z3-0\F ZB-pf CE-/\F ZE-af T
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER) (REERK) (REER) (REER) (REER) (REEK) (REER)
HK$'000 HKSO00  HKS'000 HKSO00  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS 000
FEr AT FEr AT FAr AT FAT AT
Other segment information: E 1% &&# :
Net fair value gains on REMELTE
investment properties A& FE - - - - 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Net fair value gains/(losses) on A FEABEAE
financial asetsat fairvalue 2 ST EEATE
through profitor loss s/ (B8)F% - - - - 1,410 (289) 1,410 (289)
Amortisation of other AbEREEEY
intangible assets 3,011 3011 - - - - 3,011 301
Depreciation il 1,369 7 29 145 17 17 1,625 435
Corporate and other CERAMASERE
unallocated depreciation 2,623 885
4,248 1320
Impairment losses, net REREaEER
recognised in the BRZNEESR
condensed consolidated ~ FEE*
statement of profit or loss* (142) 238 26 - - - (116) 238
Capital expenditure™ BARTH m 755 6,366 4299 - - 6,643 5,054
Corporate and other PEREMRAE
unallocated capital EREE
expenditure 445 118
7,088 5172

* BRREHEE R kTR

—E—

* Including impairment losses, net recognised in the condensed

*%

NER RS | B

consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HKS382,000 (2018: HKS270,000)
and the solutions and integration services segment of HK$39,000
(2018: Nil), respectively and impairment losses reversed in the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the application services segment of HK$524,000 (2018:
HK$32,000) and the solutions and integration services segment
of HKS 13,000 (2018: Nil), respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets.

FRREEARAR

*%

B JE IR T 77 80 K i sk 77 52 R
ERIRFEZ B2 BB E 1R FEE S
5l #382,0008 T (= F— /14 :
270,000% 7T ) K 39,000% T (=
FE—)\F E)RREBEAE B
75 2 7 [0] 3¢ B JEE A AR 75 7 /Mmt
STy 5 B KR 7 852 R B
187 5l 5 524,000 0 (—F— /1
F 32,0008 ) K 13,000 T
(ZZFE—N\F &) -

BEXHXEEYE BERRE
REURAMAEEEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHTBER (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FKEHSPREFZHA
Hong Kong
and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
EREREMER HE W g 3t kel
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

36

(i)

ZE-hE —E-)\§ ZB-NEF ZZ-\F ZB-hE —E-N\%¥
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ) (REER) (REER) (REER) (REFR)
HKs$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FET FE7 FET FE7 FET

Segment revenue: AHEA
Sales to external customers ~ SHE FIHNAEP 102,632 100,024 31,216 30,794 133,848 130,818

WAERTBREFHAE 2

The revenue information is based on the locations of the

customers. 5l o
Non-current assets (i) FREBEE
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
ANA=+H +=ZA=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&EZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BE 132,538 128,721
Mainland China A A 146,167 138,607
278,705 267,328

The non-current asset information is based on the ETRBEEER VIREEMN
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments and b == | IR === I | = N -
deferred tax assets. BTENMEERIEEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEHEER (E)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Information about a major customer

(0 —BEXEBEFZEH

Revenues from an external customer individually amounting RE—BINRE R 2 WA E B
to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: REFBIA10% A £ -

For the period ended 30 June 2019, revenue from a major BE_Z-—NFA=1THILH
customer of HK$33,658,000 was derived from the application M RE—BETERFZHAAR
services segment and the solutions and integration services 33,658,000/ 7T ' BRI EETI K B
segment. & A AR 75 0 2B FN R R 77 R M = A

AR#% 3 BB °

For the period ended 30 June 2018, revenue from a major BHE-_Z—N\FAA=+THILH
customer of HK$34,182,000 was derived from the application M RE—RBETERFZHBAR
services segment and the solutions and integration services 34,182,000 7T - B S E IR B
segment. FEFRBRTE o BB AR R 5 R R E K

AR# 2 BB °

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -BEMBRARKEFEEE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

WADHIT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRIEAEAR

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (REEEZ)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers REZFSHHKA 132,485 129,401
Revenue from other sources REHMARRFRHWRA
Gross rental income from investment WEYE 2B WARTE R
properties and interest income from EBRE 2R EWA
treasury investments 1,363 1,417
133,848 130,818

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5.

38

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

5. WA - HW AR W35 (&)

REFEFEHHKA

(i) BHFUAEH

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRAFRR
FE A BR 7% £ R Fey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
For the period ended 30 June 2019 BEZ=—Z— L F
ANA=+HLEH
Segments oy
Types of goods or services EmE R E R
Sales of goods and provision of HEEmREHSMT -
software, GETS and BPO services BINEFE S RE &
EBmIEINA RS 26,165 5,407 31,572
Provision of software RHEMEGE&EBER
implementation and % - AR R
related services, IT solutions 7 ERE AR RS
implementation and related
services 26,465 21,232 47,697
Maintenance services HeE RS 28,705 24,511 53,216
Total revenue from contracts with KB EF & #H)EU A
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
Geographical markets i & ™ %
Hong Kong and others BB R AEAM 53,359 48,216 101,575
Mainland China FR R A 27,976 2,934 30,910
Total revenue from contracts with KRB B F A LRI A
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
Timing of revenue recognition R ARG
Goods and services transferred ata W FE—FFEEES B &
pointin time A% 26,165 5,407 31,572
Services transferred over time R R R EE R 55,170 45,743 100,913
Total revenue from contracts with KRB EF & #8218 A
customers 81,335 51,150 132,485
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—E—

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 B Z =%

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

B HRARMTRE

—FEARA=TRIEAEA

REFEFEHNHKA ()

DHFRAEZH ()

Solutions and

(&)

WA - H WA R Wz 38 (&)

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRR T M
J& A AR % SR BET
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
For the period ended 30 June 2018 HEZ—Z— \F
ANA=+HLEHE
Segments Nt
Types of goods or services EmE iR 3E B
Sales of goods and provision of HEEm &};ﬂ L/QCa
software, GETS and BPO services BIRETE SRS K
E L %zé?l\ calli b 20,377 9,379 29,756
Provision of software RHEMEGELEBER
implementation and % - BB R
related services, IT solutions B ERE N AR R
implementation and related
services 24,605 23,991 48,596
Maintenance services He e R 75 27,768 23,281 51,049
Total revenue from contracts with R EZF & #9894 A
customers 72,750 56,651 129,401
Geographical markets #h & ™ %
Hong Kong and others BB &AM 44,209 54,758 98,967
Mainland China R A B 28,541 1,893 30,434
Total revenue from contracts with KRB EF & 4HY & UL A
customers 72,750 56,651 129,401
Timing of revenue recognition R AR
Goods and services transferred ata W& —REEEE 7
pointin time AR 7% 20,377 9,379 29,756
Services transferred over time R E R EE R 52,373 47,272 99,645
Total revenue from contracts with 2R B B & #9898 U A
customers 72,750 56,651 129,401

NERHRE | B REREARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -Hitw AR W FEE (E)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEZFAHMRA (&)

(i) BHEML

(iij) Performance obligations

40

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO
services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/services
delivery and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from delivery, where payment in advance is normally required.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60
days from the date of billing.

IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment in advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are for periods of one year, or are billed based on the time
incurred.

B SR B B 40 B T 40 B RHE I
mF :

HEEBRBUBNE  BIFEF
55 RET T AR

BHEENER,/ RERXMEE
B AR — AR B RITEF30E
60 ENEH] - —RFBEREMNK -

FERE T B R 4GB R %

BAEEREIRHIRTE A R ER
Mt — A e R HERE B EARE
30& 60 HAH|HA -

BB R R AR T 5 B bt R AR
5

JE #) B (ERE R S AR TS B0 B D AK -
MR — & B HRE B HER30
BARZH -EFPFE@RERENSE
TEOHEEHERTE AR
5 B BUAS & AR AN SR HE A BUR 7
EPRAMRIANSE T [ ALY
RIBERNMMERE

HEIRTE

JB %) B (ERE TR S AR 75 B0 B D AK -
i ¥& A5 IR — AR ZA 7 12 AR 75 A
- HERBAEORH —FX
RIBEENRRFLRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(iij) Performance obligations (continued)
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 30 June
2019 are as follows:

WA - H WA R Wz 38 (&)

REFEFEHNHKA ()

BRI EE (&)

RZZE-NFRA=THIEE
BTIENEECREITHRY RE
TR ZEBINELT

HK$'000
TET

Within one year —F R

All the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised within one year. The amounts disclosed above do
not include variable consideration which is constrained.

60,174

PAESRTEAOEETRBHRN —F
NER - L RBESRL TEHE
SRBIATERE o

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1TRHIEAEA

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RiEEz)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Other income and gains, net HM WA R K= 558

Bank interest income BITHREHA 3,187 3,228
Tax refund received Fir i B3R Bt 659 904

Dividend income from listed investments 2 QA FELERAE 2
at fair value through profit or loss EWEERSEKA 320 326
Others HAith 498 179
4,664 4,637

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRBLATEF

AEE 7 BRBADE &M (GEA)
NIBIE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BHEFERAR 25,650 28,637
Cost of services provided B IR AR A AR 33,155 28,917
Depreciation of property, plant and W BREREETE
equipment* 718 1,320
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREBEZITE 3,530 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets** HEM A s EEE 3,011 3,011
Minimum lease payments under operating ~ RIEZ ST E 2 KA LA
leases - 3,334
Employee benefit expense”: BERAFZ:
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - FekEM 68,693 58,844
Equity-settled share-based payment IR s E AR D AT R X
expense 9206 491
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRREFET B
(defined contribution schemes) (EFEHIETED 3,532 2,878
Less: Amount capitalised in other intangible  J& - R E {2 & E & A1t
assets ZEH (4,474) (3,063)
68,657 59,150
Impairment of financial and contract assets, A7 & & 49E EREFEE ¢
net:
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE 5 IR FURE SRR - 238
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables,  #[2] f& U & 5 BR FX R (B 5 58
net (48) -
Reversal of impairment of contract assets BEEHNEERE (68) -

* Depreciation for the period of HKS61,000 (2018: HK$9,000) is
included in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**  Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HK$3,011,000
(2018: HK$3,011,000) is included in “Other expenses”on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software

products of HKS9,534,000 (2018: HK$6,859,000).

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$33,155,000 (2018: HK528,917,000)
classified under “Cost of services provided”above.

* BRI E61,000F L (ZF— /1 F :
9,000,57C) WA G B4 & 182 7 2 [#Y
E R A

* B A i Y & E # £53,011,000% 7T
—ZF— 14 :3011,000,57T) WA FE
BAirE Ban . [BMES A -

N HEEHEAEMESHEREE
X K 9,534,000 0 (= F — )14 -
6,859,000/%7T) °

# BIE 7 A8 5 it [E I HARFE A A 2
£(5533,155,0008 T (= F — /14 -
28,917,000 7T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

7. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six
months ended 30 June 2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

7.

Fri&®t

EAFBHRIOBEABEARESE
EZEETERBOEF B R16.5% (&
2T N\FNA=ZFTHIEAMEA :
16.5% ) VE {1 5 8 o H b b [2 & 3R B %
F2RBEDRBEAEBEEEBTE

operates. R RIAERREARETE -
For the six months ended 30 June
BEASA=THLEAKER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgEZ)
HK$’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Current - Hong Kong BNHA— &%
Charge for the period HANZ W 2,268 3,152
Current — Elsewhere BIVER — E b 30 [=
Charge for the period NS M 688 936
Underprovision in prior years TEREDIREME = 119
Deferred EIE 1,401 (29)
Total tax charge for the period HMABIER HesE 4,357 4,178

—ENERERE | R R EERAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

8. DIVIDENDS

44

Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has a.
determined that an interim dividend of 9 HK cents (2018: an
interim dividend of 9 HK cents) in cash per ordinary share
should be paid to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear in the Register of Members on Tuesday, 3

September 2019.

Dividends attributable to the previous financial year approved b.

during the interim period.

8. RE

BZRE -

REHMEEERR EFE8R
ERAR-_ZT-NFNAA=RB(EH
D) AIIBEREMZ ARE ERBR
IRERIAR IR P IR B &R 98
(=T —\F: pHRE 98() »

A B EA R L 2 B B

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLEAEA

2019 2018

—E-NF —E—N\F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZX) (REgEZ)

HKs$’000 HKS000

FET FHET
Final dividend in respect of the previous & #t /4 & A BAEAR IR (&
financial year, approved and paid during B8 _H{ER S 8 2 KEARK

the interim period of HK$0.12 (2018: BERETER012ET(Z

final and special dividends HK$0.12) per = — )\ : KEI R 4FRIR%

ordinary share B0.12%870) 29,939 29,303
Less: Dividend for shares held underthe i © R IE AR 7] A R HI i 7D
Company’s restricted share award BENGTEIRFE 2R D

scheme Frigig & (284) (297)

29,655 29,006
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 246,818,981 (2018: 242,056,126) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option schemes of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

9.

%’Aﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁi@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
|

BEREABFNGENBESAR LR
B B SR FEAG AN B REDE I R AN B B 1T
T3 IR N AE T 15 81 246,818,981 i (=&
— J\4F : 242,056,126 %) 5T & - I 5t 5l
BrAA R B RS M EE 218 T AT
RO IEH AR -

BREBEREMNESBIOREE AR ER
PR B R PG AR B s M AT & - S E AT
RzEBERNEFORRFTESRE
ABENMAZHAEHTEBREA
AR AR P A IR IE AN A B RS A R AT
ERBEEHELERRBERRETT
Bk BE - ARRBARRDF GRS
Befn BB EHEIRE 2 A R #EIER
BRBIBRD G ERBE - ARRERK
BEHARITZEBBIEFHEEE -

@

T EEREA RS AT ABET ¢

pa[l]

=

BREARBEETRNIRE AR LA
B BCR R R FIET & -

Number of shares

igrid =]
2019 2018
—2-hE —T-NF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REgE=Z)
Shares Bz 42
Weighted average number of ordinary FERERBANAABRA
shares in issue during the period used in EEITERRINE T S8
the basic earnings per share calculation 246,818,981 242,056,126
Effect of dilution — weighted average HErE - TmRINETHE:
number of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIBAR R BB R HIAR (5 R ET
Company’s restricted share award S 2 AR H R
scheme 1,358,942 490,360
248,177,923 242,546,486
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10. % - BEKZRE

30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
~B=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (F&&EZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—HA—B  REFEE 3,120 3,950
Additions NE 765 1,242
Disposals (net book value) & (BRmEE) - €S)
Depreciation provided during the period/year i,/ 37 & B 1 (718) (2,051)
Exchange realignment ME H, 38 B 2 (13)
Net carrying amount, at 30 June/ wARA=+8/ B
31 December +TZA=+—H " EREFE 3,169 3,120
11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1. REY=E
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (BE=Z)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—A  RHEAE 75,661 71,255
Net gains from fair value adjustments NP EFHE 2 W FE 3,000 4,406
Carrying amount, at 30 June/ WAXA=+B/"+=A
31 December =+—0 " KREE 78,661 75,661
Assets classified as held for sale under NERRBEE L
current assets FEHENEE (8,500) -
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERDEEILS 70,161 75,661
12. GOODWILL 12. &
HKs’000
FET
30 June 2019 ZE-hFARAZTH
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2019 and RZZE-NF-A-BER-_FT-N%F
30 June 2019 NAZTHAEKARKEEAE 134,485
HKS000
FET
31 December 2018 —EZ-N\E+=ZA=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2018 and RZE-NF-—A—BRZZE-N\F
31 December 2018 TZA=+—BEAKEKEEA 134,485
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13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

13. R B EE

Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
i3
BEREr EFBE g @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET

30June 2019 —E-hAEAB=TH

Costat 1 January 2019, net of accumulated A =Z—fLF—A—H

amortisation and impairment ZHR - MBR RS
RRE
Additions NE
Amortisation provided during AERE RS
the period
At30June 2019 RZZE-NE-A=+H
At 30 June 2019; RZZE-NFAA=TH:
Cost B
Accumulated amortisation REEELAE

and impairment

Net carrying amount REFE

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR

14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062
6,323 = = 6,323
- (827) (2,184) (3,011)
20,830 8,151 28,393 57,374
33,856 14,767 43,681 92,304
(13,026) (6,616) (15,288) (34,930)
20,830 8,151 28,393 57,374
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13. Hitb | EE (F])

Deferred
development Customer
costs*  relationships Software Total
RERA* RPEE g Bar
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET FHET FET

31 December 2018 —E-N\E+ZA=t-H
Costat 1 January 2018, net of accumulated AN =F—/\F—H—H

amortisation and impairment ZHR - MBR R #

KRB 4127 10,634 34,945 49,706

Additions NE 10,380 - - 10,380
Amortisation provided during REEEERE

the year - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062
At 31 December 2018: RZZE-NF+ZA=+—-H:

Cost KA 27,533 14,767 43,681 85,981

Accumulated amortisation REEELAE

and impairment (13,026) (5,789) (13,104) (31,919)

Net carrying amount REEE 14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062

* During the period, additions of other intangible assets of HK$6,323,000 *  HIA o AT B E R 6,323,000

(31 December 2018: HKS10,380,000) were developed internally.

48
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

14. EWWE Z R

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

ZEB-hEF —E-N\F

AA=+H +TZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (& E=Z)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

At 1 January ®n—H—H 61,203 47,104
Impairment AE (3,483) (3,532)

At 30 June/31 December RANA=+B/+=A

=r—E 57,720 43,572

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
90 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

AREGEXRARAREHREZRS K
BHRAERBME  AREZR S G
HEMER A WG T BERTF 25
AR BEME - AlREBRERINR - FBE
MRERE - M T ARERE A ETT
RXPzEPME BREEH KT
ZRo0K - HEME THEETHRE
AMEEHRIEREBEBOKR KA 5
IRYRERFPEREES - AEE—
HEBIEHERERE 2 REE SRR
=REEE I EMEMBMFIRSR -
AN E IR F SRR A A E A
mEAELEMEERESEE - BRE
ZRFRALTET R

RBEHHEEER  BRE ZHERNIR
TR H IR BUE 2 SR DTN

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-NF

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (&&= =Z)

HKs$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EAA 39,007 24,440
1 to 3 months —E={EA 14,198 12,973
4 to 6 months YA ENS 2,485 3,780
7 to 12 months tE=+ @A 2,030 2,379
57,720 43,572

—FE S | B RS EEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

15.

50

14. BWE 5 IR ()

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment trade BRE SRR SEREEGEZEENT

receivables are as follows:

30June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FHET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 3,532 2,361
Impairment losses, net REEE TR - 1,201
Reversal of impairment losses, net BRI EEEFE (48) =
Exchange realignment b H 58 (1) (30)
At 30 June/31 December WXRA=+8,/+=A
=+—H 3,483 3,532
CONTRACT ASSETS 15. BHEE
30June 31 December
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZX) (FeEZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Contract assets arising from: BHEERBUTEIE:
Sales of goods and provision of software, HES m R HE Y
GETS and BPO services HNETE S RER
EBRZINHIRTE 5,541 898
Provision of software implementation RS EEREERY
and related services, IT solutions BABIEBATRERR
implementation and related services MR AR5 17,373 18,097
Maintenance services HEIRTE 2,283 1,632
Total contract assets BHEERTE 25,197 20,627
Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from RREWE T ERFALERERNEE
the provision of software and related services as the receipt of R R AR R PTG AT 2 B
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract RREHNEE IBHEM RBHER
assets for provision of software and related services are unbilled Bt AGHEEDAFRAKRERASE -
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue ERENEFPHRARALERER #ZZ
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets CPHRAREHNEENSERENHHE
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets ZRWBEBEGEFR - RZT—NFRA
as at 30 June 2019 was the result of the increase in the sale of goods —THEMERNEEL M ANERE
and provision of software at the end of the period. EEmRRHE G INATE -

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

15. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is
as follows:

BHNEE (&)
BHEENFEMRDRAEERELIT

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)\F

RA=tH +tZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (FeEZ)

HKs’000 HKS'000

FHET FHET

Within one year —F K 25,197 20,627

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

BREEZERBREESNT

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-)N\F

~B=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (feEZ)

HKS$’000 HKS000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 68 =

Impairment losses FEEE - 68

Reversal of impairment losses B EREEE (68) -
At 30 June/31 December RANA=+8/

+-—A=+—H - 68

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on
days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. There
was no recent history of default for the contract assets. Since the
contract assets are related to receivables which are still in current
and the payment is not due, the expected credit loss rates of
contract assets are assessed to be minimal.

—FE S | B RS EEARAR

REREBRRARBREETRE
o UETEFRMEEER - StEA Y
EERHREEERNBEHEXDERE
WEZEFBREEBEBEER 25
EM/H RERANEERENRE
SEFREERETEFER - GNEE
MBHEEDERBBAE AR
UERBRANTRZF 2 #8245 M
BE %M EDERBRRRE A
BHERBEER  EATMR KKK
BRI RERNEIE R AT AR -

LR EEREORIRE - GWEE
MY EBRORLHE -HRENEER
DEREEE KRB HN R RE R
BEWEENBHREEBBRREFG
RIBAE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

16.

52

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

16. BAFELRSARZ M
aE

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZET-N\F

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERZ) (EEz)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Debt investments, at fair value BAFEFEZEBHRE 4,644 4,633
Listed equity investments, at fair value BRAFEFEZ LTRAERE 11,563 10,164
16,207 14,797
Portion classified as current assets DEARSEEILS (11,563) (10,164)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERBEES D 4,644 4,633

The debt investments were designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the investment is provided internally on that
basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018 and were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
for trading.

Computer And Tech

ERNEHRREDREREERRE RN
RERBEATVEEEERE NFHER
B -HEREREAFELERAR
ZHMBEE MABZSREZEN
TEAREERAASRE T ZEEA

BBt -

ETRAREEFARZZE—LEN
A=+BER=ZF—NFE+ZA=+—
BZRBEE T 2BEABRAFEL
B A ARZUBKEE REAAZER
BERHERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

17. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

17. ENE SRR - HMAENRKE

ACCRUALS Rt RIA
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—g-hE —T-NF
ANB=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (EEz)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade payables FERTE 5 AR 22,300 24,533
Other payables H b e~ BUIE 30,966 27,936
Accruals FEETFIE 15,231 21,627
68,497 74,096

An aging analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHHEEER ENEHERNIR
BREHZRESTAT

30 June 31 December

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-N\F

ANB=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (& &E=Z)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FEIT

Within 1 month —EAA 15,743 18,045
1 to 3 months —E={A 5,340 4,749
4 to 6 months A EYE 709 1,331
Over 6 months NME AL E 508 408
22,300 24,533

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30-day terms.

—ENERERE | R R EERAT

e E 5 BRI T8 —RIK30K

HIRR 4508 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

18. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

18. BHERE

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHEEFBOT
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)\F
AA=+H +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (&&E=Z)
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Short-term advances received from customers = 4 5/ k7 Bi#4 3
Sales of goods and provision of software, HE B m RIEHEy -
GETS and BPO services BREFE SRE R
EBREINA RS 2,712 4,875
Provision of software implementation RERHEEZAEERS
and related services, IT solutions BB RAT RE R
implementation and related services 1B R AR 1% 16,670 18,356
Maintenance services HERTE 40,792 33,723
Total contract liabilities AHEERE 60,174 56,954

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and software licence and render software implementation
and related services, IT solutions implementation and related
services, and maintenance services. The increase in contract
liabilities as at 30 June 2019 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
maintenance services at the end of the period.

ERNREREARNE ML
B RRHEEEE AR RS - B
AR TT RE M X E R AR IA b
RGN EHBR -R_F—N
FRAZTHWANEBEEMNLER
BHREIR G ERS B TP WIS
HREA IR NPT BN ©
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19. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

period are as follows:

19. JELEBI A

HIR  REEHREER BB EBIT

Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE
2019
—B-nE
Temporary
differences of
contract
liabilities
BHEEZ
B ER
HKs$’000
FET
At 1 January 2019 R_E—-—hF—H—H 2,713
Deferred tax credited to the condensed consolidated ~ Ef AT A RS8R A BFE R 2 BT IE
statement of profit or loss during the period 90
At 30 June 2019 MZZE—-—HhESRA=TH 2,803
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREERE
2019
ZE-NF
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred  arising from
Revaluation of development acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
Wi
BEEX WERRZ
NERER BREA ATERE BB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000
T FEx FiET -2 FiEx
At 1January 2019 RZZ-NF-A—-H 1,578 - 9,578 1,574 12,730
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the R/ (GHA)
condensed consolidated statement of BREEERRL
profit or loss during the period EREHE 750 1,012 (715) 444 1,491
At30 June 2019 RZE-n%~A=+H 2,328 1,012 8,863 2,018 14,221

ZE-NFTHRE BB ASSE

EARRA]
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

19. IEEHE (&)

Deferred tax assets BEEREEE
2018
—E-N\F
Temporary
differences of
contract
liabilities
BRAEEZ
xR
HKS000
FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—NF—-—H—H 2,984
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of FRINFRLR A BT R ZELF A
profit or loss during the year (122)
Exchange differences e 3 =& (149)
At 31 December 2018 N_E—N\FE+_A=+—8 2,713
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRESE
2018
—E-N\E
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation of  acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties subsidiaries taxes Total
Yok
MEARZ
MEEME RTEAE | st
HKs'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\¥—-H—H 1,526 11,008 2,713 15,47
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the TR/ GIA) R
consolidated statement of profit or loss BaiJEEHE
during the year 52 (1,430 570 (808)
Tax paid ERBIE - - (1,709) (1,709)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 1,578 9,578 1,574 12,730
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial information were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2018: HK$31,700,000), of which
HK$21,237,000 (31 December 2018: HK$22,930,000) were utilised as
at 30 June 2019.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties during the period:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

20. AAREE

21.

RBEEHEEER  YARTBEEHR
AEL BB ZHRAENT

RAFERANEBAE 2 ETALM
HERBITERZBHREERRA
=T R1TIR M A %31,700,00078 7T (—
T—\F+=HF=+—H : 31,700,000
B I0) ZER - B 21,237,000 7T (=
T—-N\F+=ZH=+—H :22930,000
BIL)ER _ZE—AFEA=1tHHH -

BEALXRS

Bt S B mREMBEAFRAZRS
RHRERIN AEERBRN S HELT
THBEEALRS :
AEETEEEABZMEOT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1TRIEAEAR

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-)N\F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBERK) (REgEZ)

HKS’000 HKS'000

FETT FET

Short term employee benefits REEERT 9,626 6,711

Equity-settled share-based payment expense %1 4% & A I {5 2 (5 2 489 296

Post-employment benefits B2 B A 72 52
Total compensation paid to key management XX B&EE A8~

personnel e BB 10,187 7,059

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

22.

58

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities included in
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investments is based on available market prices.

22 IR TEAEAFERAFEER

£y

REBEEHEEER  AEEVBEE
kaEZREEEE A HESEMMEE -

ERECHERCRERARTEE
EERRITER  BREZENX B
REMEKIR - BNE SRR - Ef
BNRAR AR FRAZHHRE
ZAVFEBEFREEMRS  TEHR
ZETAZBSARE -

BBEERBBZAFEDRARR
SHZEAREMZARZTAESEA
R MERBIZIEBIBERIBRIN - TEITS
ERBRRTIAAGET A FE

ETBREREBEREZAFELRT
BWEFL

AAANEBREZEMERESF 2T
BNETSERSE -
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22. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to

Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

22.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2019

Quoted prices

MBEIEAFERAFESER
ZE (|)

AT ESRER
FREFAREY BT A AFEN
B REH

RAFEIBZAE

R-FE—-ANFNA=+H

Fair value measurement using
AVEFERAUTEE

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERB  EAUBE EAFUEE
miEHRE BAYE BAE
(%18) (%2/8) (%38) wst
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FE7 FET FET FE7
Financial assets at fair value through XA FELEZAKZ
profit or loss: HHEE
Listed equity investments IR ARE 11,563 - - 11,563
Debt investments BEBEE 2,544 2,100 - 4,644
14,107 2,100 - 16,207
As at 31 December 2018 RZFE-—NFF+ZA=+—H

Quoted prices

Fair value measurement using
ATEHERANTEE
Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BR OBRTER EAMAUEER

TiERE AR BABE
(E18) ($28) (£3E) 4t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value through XA FELERZAKZ
profit or loss: HHEE

Listed equity investments IR ARE 10,164 - - 10,164
Debt investments BEHRE 2,533 2,100 - 4,633
12,697 2,100 - 14,797

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

22.

23

60

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018.

During the period ended 30 June 2019, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and an available-for-sale
investment, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

22 IRTEAAFERAFEER

23.

& (|)
DFEFHRERE (8]

BEQAVEAFEBZEE:

AEEBR-_ZT-AFRA=Z+TERZ
TZ-NF+ZA=+—B I EEMR
NHEAEZHMBRE -

BE_T-NAFANA=TRHILHHE"
FIVERF2ECEMEMBEERLY
BRBEATEFAEEE  TEQAFE
AEEARELFEIBE(BE_ZT N
Ft_A=+t—RHLFE: &) -

MEEREEERRBEXR

AEBZIEMBKTARFEDEME
THEFARBRERERARESEE - It
EMBITAZEERENRAKEZ
XGRE - ARBEEEMEEMBEA
ENBE WEKESER RehH
it FE W SR TR~ FE AN 5 BR R K H A
N3IE - T AR RBRZHBEE &
RPERBRAR M BEER A
AHEERE UWEWHKEERAE
TEREXBEEEREL -

AEBPBIAELAZTERBR AT
Ky SNERR - EERR  BRAE
REBREABESER EFSEH
W RIE T XAt e 32 B IR R 2 R ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. I BEBEERERKE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

G0

AEBREMSHNEZEGHMAT 2 M
RERERNEEFRNBITRBZE
MEFBZIRE MRITHEREM -

T & M T A B TR
BORT - ASEE 2 BB AR R (5%
R RRTEBRRBIERAZLE)
HF|E AR AL RS S QR -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

HEhgm,/ Bk % A 3
(m4) &/ (hd)

HKS'000
FET
As at 30 June 2019 R=B-hFRA=T+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (109)
United States dollar ETT (25) (351)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARBTAR%ED (25) (181)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 109
United States dollar E7T 25 351
RMB AR 25 181
As at 30 June 2018 RZE—-—NFXH=1TH
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (133)
United States dollar EIv (25) (265)
RMB AR (25) (231)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 133
United States dollar eV 25 265
RMB AR 25 231

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &HZE =T — NF/NA =+ H L@ A

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. I BEMEEEERKE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk ShiEE B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures REEEHISEERR - RERE
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses ERENEEEMERLEMLIEE
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ MAINEBBRIM 2 WA R, HEEZ
functional currencies. PR R FASE ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of T%%@ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬁ """"" BRI
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB EAT AEBRBREHELEERZ
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s RN (BEEEERA T§Q$1ﬁ
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets BE)HARBEXRAGESEZE &
and liabilities). RXIZE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax

ExLH Bk 5 AT 35
(Tr&) &/ CAD)

% HKS000
FHET

As at 30 June 2019 R-B-NAFEARA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT A ARMERZE 5 (457)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T i A R FHE (5) 457
As at 30 June 2018 R-ZFE—N\FRA=1+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HAREEE 5 (495)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T i, A REEFHE (5) 495
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained MR B 5% K AN - % 2N £ B #E a5 i | T
profits. Al B 28 o
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23.

—E—

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 B Z =%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investments
and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentration of credit risk are managed by customers/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 55.7% (31 December 2018: 21.4%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group were due from certain departments/units
of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 14 to
the financial statements.

NERHRE | B REREARAR

B ERRME(E)

—FEARA=TRIEAEA

23. BIEREREBFEREEK (&)

EEAR
AEETERRTREERTZE=
FIREERRETRS  BRAEE
THE RSB REEEBRETR

HGZEF EXABRELVAKBET
EEBZIEFE  TAEE - 4N B
WS AR FEEER -

AEEEMYBEE BRECEFR
TER - B kFRBESEE EHR
BUARZRENEMERRBEZEER
RTEREBXHHEFTEL MEREA
PSR ETAZREE -

HRAEEFZHRAREERITZ
E=ZFTREERTETRS WHEFE
Tﬁ#ﬁuu"

FEEEPRBRARRL HFHiEME
&Eﬂ%"*ﬁiﬂ"mfi o MR HAR 45
BH BARAEEEREZIREREES
B557% (ZE—N\F+=-A=+—H8:
21.4%) A FEURE B 45 BI1T R R BT (R
EBRAREF) ETEM,/ B2 FE -
MAEEAZ—EEEETRR -

ERASEAREEZRKAARZ

CERBZE—FTTE2IMEE ©
B RRMN 14 E -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

23.

64

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
in Hong Kong (note 16) as at 30 June 2019 and 31 December
2018. The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

23. BIBEREREBEFERBEEK (&)

RS fE A B

P AN (B 4% B B 2 48 B 0 AR SR 48 BRMN
MBEBSFBEZEBCERRAEZ A
FEEREZRAR AEBZBRAER
REERE_FT-—AFAA=ZTAR
—E-N\F+ZA=+-HBHEER
FERBESARZIMBEE-FTR L
MBEAE (MisE16) 2 ERIRAKRE -
AEBZ ETBRARERBBHR AR
SHRAERAR LT RREHAREE
BRmi5RENE

TREJNEMBEMEBEHER TEZ
BT RARGHERBREZER - E
FHERAERE AEELTRAKE
REEHEEER 2 A FETEE10%
- fHRAHE < BRGRE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

BEKREZ RR B A 28

IREME i CRD)

HKS"000 HKS’000

FET FAET
As at 30 June 2019 R=ZZB-NFARA=+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EBAE LT ZBRARE :

- Held-for-trading —BEEE 11,563 1,156

As at 31 December 2018 WZE—NF+=—A=+—H

Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EREBLEMZRAKRE

— Held-for-trading —HEEE 10,164 1,016

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

B R B8 5 A AN -

e .
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

—E—

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior

management on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

23. BIEREREBFEREEK (&)

RBE SRR

AEEZEEARRERFENESI
ENERSHEERHZUBAGEAHON
e EERBECRRE  NEEER
MEFEEES AR MIEHALEEE
a% 2R e RIRITHEBRRIRITER
VTHERESRERDER 2T E
=&a@ﬁ#f* %%KﬁlZﬁ

AN~ =1
EneE °

REEHHESEER  AKERESD
AFBRAFRAE 2 M B RER S
IR

As at 30 June 2019 R-ZZB-—RFEXRA=1H
Lessthan  3tolessthan
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REREE PR=MER =ZEZ+t=@ARK @it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FE7 FE7
Trade payables ERESER 19,936 1,452 912 22,300
Other payables Hth 5008 - 30,966 - 30,966
Financial liabilities included inaccruals ~ &F AR HIEZ B A& - 6,747 - 6,747
Guarantees given to banks for RAKEREZET
performance bonds/quarantees BNBLBHRE/
issued in relation to certain contracts ERmmERITIRE
undertaken by the Group ZER 21,237 - - 21,237
41,173 39,165 912 81,250

NERHRE | B REREARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR MIEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 &l E —E— NENA=+HILNEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

66

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

23. BIBEREREBEFERBEEK (&)

RBE SRR (&)

R-ZZBE-NF+-HA=+—H

Less than 3toless than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RENKER PR=EA Z=E+=_AAR &5t
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables ERESER 21,292 2,098 1,143 24,533
Other payables H AR 38 - 27,936 = 27,936
Financial liabilities included inaccruals & AERT HIEZ B A& - 5,570 - 5,570
Guarantees given to banks for RAEEAZEZAET
performance bonds/quarantees BNBLBHRE/
issued in relation to certain contracts ERTRERITIR M
undertaken by the Group ZER 22,930 = = 22,930
44,222 35,604 1,143 80,969
Capital management BEARERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2019 and year ended 31 December 2018.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

FEBERAERBIEZENERRE
AEBRBEKEZRENLHTIRESR
AR AXRHEEB R BBERE K
RAEE-

AEBREEERARN 2 EE NABRE
EZRBRBE THEHREEER
RELELER AEEAABIBH
BEHBERKEIBE MRREEER
RHBEITHBART R AREANERE -
REBEBBABTERINEEMZ ER
ME-BE_FT-NAFXA=1THL
HELBE-_T-NFT+_A=1—
BIEFEAR AEEZEXEEBE
BRI P EEE -

RERE 2 BN A R AE s B 0 4K o
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24.

25.

26.

—-=

T NFEPHRE | BB AREEBRAR

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BT sR R MR (4E)

Six months ended 30 June 2019 EZ = F— N F XA =+HIL/NEA

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 7 August
2019, the Group had entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose one of the
investment properties of the Group in PRC at a cash consideration
of approximately RMB8,400,000.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current period’s presentation and disclosures. The directors
of the Company consider that such reclassifications allow a more
appropriate presentation of the Group’s results of operations and
better reflect the nature of transactions.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 16 August 2019.

24.

25.

26.

BERKREE

RIEHERE R-E—NEN\A+Lt
H AEBEERE—RBRBIE=HFIL
Feis B & s - LAIR (498,400,000
ARBHEAEEEF —HURNF =

AHE Y o

b=

AETHReBEEOEHN O UFEAR
HEZ2RBE - ARAEERR
ZEEM O BAINESBEM ALK
B EREXENEYEHRRZHIEE -

BEPHBMBRE

EEgRN_T-AFN\AtTRB#E

KR RET B MR Mk o
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Other Information

Hib&E ¥

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERROREERG 2EERKXR

RZFB-NFRA=TH FEZRARF
REEEEE (ExREHMAEGE ([F
7 M EIERDI]) B XVER) 2 RS K AR R B (D
PR AR R AREE 5 M B R 352
GREFEZECMP ARSI RE LT
BOTANEZETEFXHINERETRRTT
HMEARNRE LB RN T

ERREBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE  SoRERME

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company’s

beneficially controlled issued

owned corporation Total share capital

EARRT

Note HiE ik c] ERITRAE

Name of director EEng BtiF BEnEEE SEHEAF wmy Aok
Ng Cheung Shing REB (@) 4,684,000 114,614,000 119,298,000 47.82
Cheung Wai Lam SR AE TR 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.40
Leung King San, Sunny £ 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R E 58 520,000 - 520,000 0.21
7,234,000 114,614,000 121,848,000 48.84

68
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

Other Information (continued)

HtER (&)

%ﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁZ%ﬁ‘é&iﬁé%
IIE

R—BHEBEERD 2H A :

Percentage
Number of shares of the
KiBHE associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
LEREL
E# EB EBOTRA
EEps HEEEER BEANE2ER IR 17 % 5Bl Biffs XEHLT Rl
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And  Company’s subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
KRR Technologies A2 Z KB AR deferred (note [f{7E (b)) TiER
International EREREL
Limited

MERRERR

Notes:

(@) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR

fax

() cs (BVI) Limited 7 2 & M B A R BH R A

NE (B ) %5 114,614,000 [RAX 1D » R

E%%Eﬁﬁ%%cs (BVI) Limited Z f% R K&
EITESIESIITE =D 2 — A £ 2 IR

if C.S. (BVI) Limited B B # A I IR R K g L

TEREFTE= 2 —RALRERE - B

bt BIEEFRBEKRN  RERBILAERES
BRNEHMEEZIERDPHERER -

(b)  7%3,250,000 % M IT RRER TR D TR BE
BA -

B ESXHEEEN RZE—NAFSA=1+RH"
BMEE BN AR R K EA (AR EE 2R
MDA G T - BEEREESF KB EE
F352{EB T ROE HRE T %é‘ﬁ}\%%
BETEAFRRINEZEESFA ST AR
MR SRR o
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Other Information (continued)

HtER (&)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”) under which shares of the Company (the
“Award Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees (including
directors) of any members of the Group in accordance with the provisions
of the Award Scheme and an irrevocable trust was also established by
the Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the Renewed Date.

Details of the Award Scheme thereunder are set out in the Annual Report
2018.

EEREROIES 2ER

B N [RER Rt &1 N [ A R Bl B in 22 B &t
BB RARMREAERKE &
BYEAEFIEEFEA 2EBIARKE T
LRFEBAAR R BB BT 2 R -
S EETRSENDERETE  ARF]
S E MM B AR B ERT LR - AIE
EESBALMEMEABRBZZEEN -

BIRRERT &

ARARETZBREFITESAEEE
BRNELERMZAERSBERHERER
K Bl ¥ &% o

BERNATBRENHARE 176 E#H
HRRK -

BRRH R RBEE

KRR _EENFRA-+_HRH—E
BRSO EZEE ([EEED KR
T—+tFRA=Z+—B(EEBHH]) EE
HENETE - Bt AR R AIRIEEEETE
B AALEEAKE QR ZEHERS (B
BER)BERAQRRKRGD ([EERKRHKH]) - &K
RNE) I BB B S — B A ST o
HENE S B R ERAN H B E R o BRIER AR bk
B8] BEEEH BB HFRER -

ERRBENHEBERN T \FFH-
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BERERMEBE S (E)

Other Information (continued)

HtER (&)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the FNXRHFHIEE-—FT—NFNA=+HIEH
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30 IR SEENHEITE [ 2EENIL(D ~ B R E &) -

June 2019.
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEEERROBE Weighted
At Vested At average
Name of category 1 January during the 30 June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2019 period 2019 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SHRERE R-ZB-1& R-E-NF FRmE
P B R —-A—-B HREEE K<A=tH RiL%mH A H ZERROBESR VHLYE
HKS
BT
Directors
=
Ng Cheung Shing 250,000 (50,000) 200,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RRE —E-N\%F 30 April 2023
ARATEA ZE-AFMA=+HZE
—T=FMA=1H
Cheung Wai Lam 150,000 - 150,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
KIER —E-RE 30 September 2021
TAtEE —T—tFAA=1RHZE
T -FNRA=TA
Cheung Wai Lam 250,000 (50,000) 200,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RER —E-N\%F 30 April 2023
EATMA ZE-AFEA=tHZE
“E-=FMA=+H
Ng Kwok Keung 48,000 (24,000) 24,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 to 2.62
RE% —T-RF 30 April 2020
TAME —ZE-XEMA=+AZE
—E_TFMA=1H
Ng Kwok Keung 250,000 (50,000) 200,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
REH —ZT-N\F 30 April 2023
IATMAE ZE-AFEA=+HZE
ZEC=FMA=TH
948,000 (174,000) 774,000

“E-NFRHRE | HERREEEARAR
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Other Information (continued)

HtER (&)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BERER MBS (E&)

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AEEEBROBE Weighted
At Vested At average
Name of category 1 January during the 30 June Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2019 period 2019 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SHRERE R-ZB-1& R-ZB-N& =3k
P B R —-A-B HREHE® AKSA=tH RHREAH RRROBESR VHLYE
HKS
BT
Other employees
Hitfg 8
In aggregate 48,000 (24,000) 24,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 262
FEE —E-8%F to 30 April 2020
L AMA —NFMA=TRZE
“TCTFNA=TA
In aggregate 72,000 - 72,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
@t —E-REF 30 September 2021
TAtTEE —T—tFAA=1RHZE
—E-FfNA=TA
In aggregate 1,325,000 (265,000) 1,060,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
@t —E-N\EF 30 April 2023
AATMEA Z-NFMA=THZE
—Z=HNA=1H
2,393,000 (463,000) 1,930,000

/2

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2019



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Other Information (continued)

HtER (&)

FTERRREMAL (AFAQTE
EREFBRTHRAER) RROKEBER

10z &

RZZE-NAFRA=1TH UATRERRA
LB EARIRRE 75 I BB 1R 0] 56 336 1R AR TE
FEZESZELMAGEARRAEETRAE

N EBARHES% LA b2 #ES

Long positions: HE:
Percentage
of the
Number of Company’s Number
Capacity and nature ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  of interest shares held capital options held
AR
BERTRA it
ARNRRREE AR Mt BoRERME FiEEBEREE BOl EREHR
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@  Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BUNMRAERRAR BEREREAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@  Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -
BRXEHRE
Puttney Investments Limited ("PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 =
BEREREAR
Hutchison International Limited (“"HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
BRXEHRT
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MaEEERAA ((HE]) BRXEH AT
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIEX (RB)ARAR(RED BRXEH AT
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINZEERRAA(RM]) BRXEH AT
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1073 -
FNX BEREREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,487,000 2.20 -
BEREREAR
() Through a controlled corporation 9,623,000 3.86 -
BBXEHRA
—T-NFRPRE | MM EREEARAF
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er Information (continued)

Ht&E R (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’

(NO

T BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE

COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Save
direc

“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares

The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

The 9,623,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, no person, other than the
tors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

”

above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED

SEC

URITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting period.

74

TERRRAEMAL (EFAQRE
EREBRTHRAER) RROKEBER
2z ()

(@) ZESTRARE[ZEERARMD RAERG
Z*& SRAR|—HRNBEEARRBLEL
e

(b) PILTIHILZZEMBAR HLRIATEZ
2EMBRR -REARMZ2EHBAR]
MREZHBAREENRMEZRREAS

EHEETERHENITERBB=D —REE -
RBESLHEGEN - & RE - NER

HIL % 1% 1E B2 PIL FT 3% 29,148,938 i% 7N A &) i%
D EEER -

() 9,623,000 i% I% 19 H Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ([ PSALJ) ¥/ ° PSAL B Webb David
Michael t S EHEHE =S - At -
Webb David Michael 5t 4 4% 18 {E 7 PSAL 5
Z bR e -

R EXHEEEIN R_E-NAFEAA=1+H"

fﬁfﬁﬁé\ %&EAtKF%$EAﬂxﬁ&$EF§Hx@

CEBREAR| -2 ARBESIN HiE

T?cﬁ/\ifﬁ/\js AIRDIEERDPHEE

$F<TJ§M%*&H B 1R B 58 336 15678 T Ao % < 1
mIAE ©

BE BORHEAXAQFT LTRSS

AR B R AR B R R RHE AR E
BE EO 5

FHEEAARF LTE

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and other regulations. This framework was built around a
structure that enables the Board and the management to discharge their
risk management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation
as well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining
risk appetite in accordance with the Group'’s business strategies and
objectives, formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those
strategies, and establishing procedures and limits for the approval,
control, monitoring and remedy of risks.
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Other Information (continued)
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included one independent non-executive director and three
executive directors. The Risk Management Committee had direct
involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite, and determined
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to
its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures
that the management adopted in executing its business functions.
The Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
risk management and internal controls and financial reporting matters
related to the preparation of the unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2019.
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